

S.27

An act relating to tastings and sale of wines, fortified wines, and spirits

It is hereby enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Vermont:

Sec. 1. 7 V.S.A. § 2(15), (16), and (28) are amended to read:

(15) "Manufacturer's or rectifier's license": a license granted by the liquor control board that permits the holder to manufacture or rectify, as the case may be, malt beverages and vinous beverages for export and for sale to bottlers or wholesale dealers, or spirituous liquors for export and for sale to the liquor control board, upon application of a manufacturer or rectifier and the payment to the liquor control board of the license fee as required by subdivision 231(1) of this title for either license. The liquor control board may grant to a licensed manufacturer or rectifier a first class restaurant or cabaret license or first and third class restaurant or cabaret license permitting the licensee to sell alcoholic beverages to the public only at the manufacturer's premises. A manufacturer of malt beverages who also holds a first class restaurant or cabaret license may serve to a customer malt beverages by the glass, not to exceed eight glasses at one time and not to exceed four ounces in each glass. The liquor control board may grant to a licensed manufacturer or a rectifier of malt or vinous beverages a second class license permitting the licensee to sell alcoholic beverages to the public only at the manufacturer's or rectifier's premises. A licensed manufacturer or rectifier of vinous beverages

may serve, with or without charge, at an event held on premises of the licensee or the vineyard property, vinous and malt beverages, provided the licensee gives the department written notice of the event, including details required by the department, at least 15 days before the event. Any beverages not manufactured by the licensee and served at the event shall be purchased on invoice from a licensed manufacturer or wholesale dealer. Upon application and payment of the license fee as required by subdivision 231(11) of this title, the liquor control board may grant to a licensed manufacturer or rectifier of vinous beverages fourth class or farmers' market licenses permitting the licensee to sell ~~these~~ fortified wines and vinous beverages by the bottle to the public at the licensed premises or at a farmers' market, provided that the beverages were produced by the manufacturer or rectifier. No more than a combined total of ten fourth class and farmers' market licenses may be granted to any licensed manufacturer or rectifier. An application for a farmers' market license shall include copies of the farmers' market regulations, the agreement between the farmers' market and the applicant, and the location and dates of operation of the farmers' market. A farmers' market license shall be valid for all dates of operation for a specific farmers' market location. However, in no case may a person with an interest in more than one manufacturer's or rectifier's license have an interest in more than four fourth class licenses. The manufacturer or rectifier shall pay directly to the commissioner of taxes the

sum of \$0.265 cents per gallon for every gallon of malt beverage and the sum of \$0.55 cents per gallon for each gallon of vinous beverage manufactured by the manufacturer or rectifier and provided for sale pursuant to the first class license or the second class license or the fourth class license or combination thereof held by the manufacturer or rectifier. Holders of a manufacturer's or rectifier's second class license for malt beverages may distribute, with or without charge, malt beverages by the glass, not to exceed two ounces per product and eight ounces in total, to all persons of legal drinking age. The malt beverages must be consumed upon the premises of the holder of the license. At the request of a person holding a first class or second class license, a holder of a manufacturer's or rectifier's license for malt beverages may distribute without charge to the management and staff of the license holder, provided they are of legal drinking age, no more than four ounces per person of a malt beverage for the purpose of promoting the beverage. Written notice shall be provided to the department of liquor control at least 10 days prior to the date of the tasting. A licensed manufacturer or rectifier of spirits may do either or both of the following:

(1) Sell by the glass or bottle spirits manufactured by the licensee to the public only at the manufacturer's or rectifier's premises.

(2) Dispense by the glass, with or without charge, spirits manufactured by the licensee provided that no more than one-quarter ounce per product and no more than one ounce in total is dispensed to each individual of legal age.

(16) "Person," as applied to licensees: , means individuals who are ~~both~~ citizens ~~and residents of the state~~ of the United States, partnerships composed ~~solely~~ of individuals, a majority of whom are ~~both~~ citizens ~~and residents~~ of the ~~state~~ United States, and ~~to~~ corporations organized under the laws of this or another state ~~whereof~~ in which a majority of the directors are ~~both~~ citizens of the United States ~~and residents of this state~~, or to corporations subject to the jurisdiction of the public service board, and to limited liability companies organized under the laws of this or another state in which a majority of the members or managers are ~~both~~ citizens of the United States ~~and residents of this state~~.

(28) "Fourth class license": the license granted by the liquor control board permitting a manufacturer or rectifier of vinous beverages to sell fortified wines manufactured by the licensed manufacturer or rectifier and vinous beverages by the bottle and distribute, with or without charge, ~~vinous~~ those beverages by the glass as hereinbefore defined.

Sec. 2. 7 V.S.A. § 223 is amended to read:

§ 223. ~~FIRST AND SECOND CLASS LICENSES; RESIDENCE~~

~~REQUIREMENTS; LICENSES TO ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OR  
CONTROL BOARD MEMBER; EXCEPTIONS~~

~~(a) No first or second class license for the sale of malt or vinous beverages shall be granted to an individual, unless the individual is, at the time of application, a legal resident of the town or city in which the application is made. No first or second class license shall be granted to a partnership unless one or more of its general partners is a legal resident of the town or city in which the application is made and a majority of the partners are both legal residents of Vermont and U.S. citizens. No license of any class shall be granted to any enforcement officer or to any person or corporation acting in his or her the officer's behalf. A member of a local control board to whom or in behalf of whom a first or second class license was issued by that board shall not participate in any control board action regarding any first or second class license. If a majority of the members of a local control board is unable to participate in a control board action regarding any first or second class license, that action shall be referred to the state liquor control board for investigation and action. An application for a first or second class license by or in behalf of a member of the local control board or a complaint or disciplinary action regarding a first or second class license issued by a board on which any~~

member is a licensee shall be referred to the state liquor control board for investigation and action. ~~The provisions of this section, however, shall not apply where application is made by a citizen and legal resident of a town or city in Vermont for a license to sell malt or vinous beverages in a town or city wherein he or she is not a legal resident, provided such applicant owns improved real estate or personal property other than stock of goods for sale in the town wherein such license is to be issued upon which he or she pays taxes appraised by the listers at not less than \$2,500.00 on real estate or \$1,000.00 on personal property. The provisions of this title shall not apply to an individual who applies for a license to be used at the site of flood control projects or national guard encampments whose application is approved by the commanding officer thereof.~~

~~(b) A second class license may be granted, however, where an application is made by a citizen and legal resident of any town or city in the state and who has openly conducted a place of business in such town or city in which the application is made for one year next prior to the making of the application, or who has purchased a going business which has been conducted openly in such town or city for a period of one year next prior to the making of the application, and who is a legal resident of the town or city in which he resides.~~